
Question # Question Response

1
Does the Town currently have a contractor working on these services? 

If yes, who is it?

Yes. ICF Incorporated, L.L.C. (ICF) is currently working on a 
short-term limited agreement to assist with the start of the 

FEMA PA process.  

2
Under Page 3, Submittal Requirements, Section 1, there is direction to 
“complete the table.” Can the Town clarify what table is to be utilized?

Language corrected as follows: "Attach a brief profile of the 
firm, providing a description and location. Indicate the name, 

credentials, and experience of the lead people  who will be 
executing the work. Vendor information must also include 

insurance coverage information." 

3
Under Page 3, Submittal Requirements, Section 1, is insurance 

documentation to be included in the 20-page limit?
No.

4
Under Page 3, Submittal Requirements, Section 1, Can the Town 

explain what it is seeking when referring to a “schedule 
of reimbursables”?

This has been removed from the "Vendor Information" 
requirements. 

5 Under Page 4, the RFP states:  
"The following items also must be submitted with the proposal:

·        Certification regarding lobbying
·        Disclosure of lobbying activities

·        System for Award Management (SAM)…"
Does the Town intend to supply these forms? Additionally, if the forms 
and SAM documentation are to be included in proposals, are they to 

be included in the 20-page limit?

6
This section refers to completion of a table. Can the Town please 

provide the Vendor Information Form or information to be included in 
the table? 

Language corrected as follows: "Attach a brief profile of the 
firm, providing a description and location. Indicate the name, 

credentials, and experience of the lead people  who will be 
executing the work. Vendor information must also include 

insurance coverage information." 

7

For the insurance information to be submitted, can the Town provide 
the required coverages and limits? Is an attestation that bidder can 
meet those requirements upon award sufficient, or is a certificate of 

insurance needed for proposal submission?

$1,000,000 per occurrence/$1,000,000 aggregate 
commercial general liability coverage.

NC Statutory requirement for Worker's Compensation
$1,000,000 per occurrence Professional Liability/Errors & 

Omissions
 Town named as additional insured.

8
Can the Town please provide the Lobbying Disclosure Certification 

form, or information for the vendor to include in their own 
certification?

This has been removed from the "Submittal" requirements and 
will be addressed in the contract. 

9
Will the Town consider excluding required forms and staff resumes 

from the 20-page limit?
Required forms yes, resumes no. 

10
Can bidders utilize font size of less than 12 point for tables and 

graphics, as long as they are easily readable?
Yes.  

11
In addition to municipalities and counties, will the town also accept 
references from private non-profits (utilities) for which similar work 

was performed?
Yes. 

12
For the confidential version of the proposal, can bidders submit this as 

a separate electronic file, instead of mailing a hard copy?
Yes. 

13
Can the Town confirm bidders will be able to escalate labor rates on 

an annual basis?
Yes, as long as escalations are proposed in the response. 

14
Page 3: Submittal Requirements: 1. Vendor Information directs us to 

“Complete the table….” We were unable to locate a “table” in the 
documents provided. Please advise where we can locate the “table”.

Language corrected as follows: "Attach a brief profile of the 
firm, providing a description and location. Indicate the name, 

credentials, and experience of the lead people  who will be 
executing the work. Vendor information must also include 

insurance coverage information." 

This has been removed from the "Submittal" requirements and 
will be addressed in the contract. 
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15
Page 3: Submittal Requirements: 2: Staff Qualifications states 

“…provide a brief resume and qualifications….” Are the resumes 
required to be in 12 PT Font?

Yes. 

16

 Page 4: Submittal Requirements section: Directs us to submit 
Certification regarding lobbying and disclosure of lobbying activities. 

Does the town have forms to be completed? What is the Town’s 
preference for providing the documents or information?

This has been removed from the "Submittal" requirements and 
will be addressed in the contract. 

Page 4: Submittal Requirements section, last paragraph: states, 
“Submitting firms shall provide one PDF copy of the statement of 

qualifications (SOQ)…” It appears that the Town wants one 20 page 
RFP response that details the respondents qualifications that includes 

the information required in items 1-5 in the Submittal Requirements 
section.

a.      Please confirm that all information detailed in items 1-5 should 
be counted as pages in the 20 page SOQ submission. This includes 

resumes, forms, cost proposal, and insurance information.
b.      Would the Town prefer a separate section for the vendor 

approach?

18

Page 4: Selection Procedures: Evaluation Criteria: Historically 
federally funded RFP’s include evaluation details that include points 

or percentages assigned to each evaluation factor/section. Would the 
Town be willing to provide the factors or associated points that aligns 

with the factors’ importance?

Proposals will be rated on quality, performance and proposed 
cost. The scoring matrix will weigh the following factors: 35% 
Firm Experience with scope of services, 30% Cost Proposal, 

20% Technical approach/project organization, 15% firm 
size/capacity to perform.

19
Federal Contract Provisions: Is the Town planning to publish the 

federal requirements and contract provision in the RFP or address in 
the contract

This has been removed from the "Submittal" requirements and 
will be addressed in the contract. 

20

Item 1 Vendor Information requests the respondent to 
“complete the table

and  attach  a  brief  profile  of  the  firm.”  Please  provide  the  
table  that  the respondent should include.

Language corrected as follows: "Attach a brief profile of the 
firm, providing a description and location. Indicate the name, 

credentials, and experience of the lead people  who will be 
executing the work. Vendor information must also include 

insurance coverage information." 

21

Item  1  Vendor  Information  requests  respondents  to  
include  insurance coverage information. Please confirm this 

information is excluded from the
page count.

Correct, does not count for towards the 20-page limit.

22
Please provide clarification regarding what should be included 

in the Cost Proposal in addition to Attachment A?
Cost proposal should include the hourly rate for all named 

personnel included in the proposal. 

23
Can the Town provide context for how the pricing section will 

be evaluated?
The cost proposal will make up 30% of the evaluation score 

for the proposal. 

24
Please clarify if additional pricing details or assumptions are 

excluded from the page count.
No.

25

The following items are requested for inclusion in the 
proposal: certification regarding lobbying, disclosure of 

lobbying activities form, and proof of SAM registration.  Please  
provide  the  forms  for:  the  Certification  Regarding Lobbying,    
Disclosure    of    Lobbying    Activities,    Iran    Divestment    Act 
Certification and the Divestment from Companies that Boycott 

Israel.

This has been removed from the "Submittal" requirements and 
will be addressed in the contract. 

26
Please confirm all requested forms, including insurance, can be 
provided in an Appendix that is excluded from the page count.

Correct, does not count for towards the 20-page limit.

17
Yes. One 20-page document (not including additional 

requested certifications) that covers the firm's background, 
personnel qualifications, project approach and costs.
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27
Please confirm graphics are excluded from the font 

requirements.
Confirmed. 

28
Please clarify if table text size is exempt from the font 

requirements.
Confirmed. 

29
Please confirm the Town will accept a redacted copy of the 

SOQ by email in addition to the original SOQ document.
Confirmed. 
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